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The Fourth Avenue United Methodist :Church is located on the soutleast

corner of Fourth and St. Catherine Streets. The church sits on the edge of

the 01d Louisville Residential District (February, 1975) and was excluded

from the district because of the commercial intrusion in the southern section

of the block. The church is a handsome stone ashlar structure in the Gothic
Revival style, which is complimentary in style to many 01d Louisville structures.

The facade of the church is divided into three sections. The central section
protrudes to allow room for the narthex. The section is flanked by two corner
towers. The first floor has a single arched portal with a Gothic door jamb.-

The original opening has been enclosed with a glass door. The entry is reached

by a flight of stone steps. The portal is flanked on either side by a pair of
arched stained-glass windows, which are articulated by engaged columns. A smooth
stone band divides this floor from the second story and serves as a continuous
verticle division' for ‘the facade.  The section above the portal is almost completely
filled with a large pointed arched stained-glass window divided into three sectlons
by stone pilasters. Above the window is a band of lanceted blind arches. An
elaborate gable tops the section and rises from between the corner towers. The
gable is decorated with open work and pinacles.

To the north of central section is a belfry. The belfry has the same horizonal
divisions as the central section of the facade. The corners of the belfry are
emphasized by buttresses, which rise to the band of lanceted blind arches. The
arches continue around the belfry from the center section. The lower floor is
pierced by two small rectangular windows and above these are a single pointed «
arched window with stained-glass and tracery. The upper section of the belfry
rises above the gable!’ ‘Each face ‘of the belfry tower is pierced by two elaborate
pointed arched window of rich tracery influenced by the English Decorated style.
The corner towers have carved panels and are capped by gothic pinacles. The tower
is topped by a decorated stone band and a crenelatedi.parapet.

The south section of the facade consists of only two stories. The first floor has

a handsome double wood doorway, reached by a flight of stone steps. The door has
large wrought iron hinges in the Gothic style. The doorway is capped by an extended
stone doorhood in an ogee arch. Above the entry is a double rectangular window with
a square-headed lintel. This section is topped by a crenelated parapet and hip roof
is visible above.

The sides of the church are marked by a rich variety of stained-glass windows and
gable transepts with rose windows. The steeply pitched roof of the nave is most
visible from the side. The entry to the main chapel is reached through the narthex.
The narthex has stone walls and four rectangular stained-glass panels The doors to
the sanctuary are on elther end of the narthex. ‘

The santucary is a three—alsled nave. Three sections of galleries wrap around the
sides and west end of the room. The rich mahogany pews are in a semi-circular
arrangement, an influence of the Akron plan. The entire room has a mahogany
wainscoting with a lanceted arch motif. This same wotif is used for the gallery

rail.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Fourth Avenue Church is an exceptional example of Gothic Revival
ecclesiastical architecture. The church was begun in 1888 and the current
facade and sanctuary was designed in 1900 and completed in 1902. The church
was the design of Dodd and Cobb, one of Louisville's leading architectural
firms at the turn of the century. ‘

The Fourth Avenue Church congregation was founded in 1878 from the membership

of the Walnut Street Methodist Episcopal Church South and the Chestnut Street
Episcopal Church. The group purchased a lot at the corner of Third and St.
Catherine, where the Walnut Street Baptist Church now stands. They sold the

lot a few months later and purchased the present site at Fourth and St.

Catherine for $10,000. A $40,000 chapel was built on the site in 1888. This
area was encorporated into the 1902 church and serves today as the social parlor.
The new sanctuary and facade cost nearly $100,000.

The Fourth Avenue Church was designed by Dodd and Cobb. Dodd was the architect
and Cobb was the engineer. William J. Dodd came to Louisville in 1884, from
Chicago where he had worked for William Jenny and S.S. Beeman on the town of
Pullman. His first partner was Mason Maury. The firm of Maury and Dodd was
responsible for the design of many homes in 0ld Louisville, especially on Fourth
Street and the St. James area. They also designed the Louisville Trust Building,
Fifth and Market Sts., St Paul's Church, Fourth and Magnolia, and the Fourth
Avenue Baptist Church. The firm was dissolved in 1895 and Dodd became partners
with Arthur Cobb. Dodd had turned away from the Richarsonian Romanesque styles
during the end of his partnership with Maury. In 1893, he had been responsible
for the design of the Kentucky Exposition Building for the Great Columbia Ex-
position in Chicago. The building was an elaborate and ornate structure utilizing
classical motifs. The Columbia Exposition itself became known as the 'Great
White City" and was the major influence in the return to classical styles in

the country in the 1890's through the begining of the first World War took

its name. This was the style in which Dodd worked primarily from 1893 until

he left Louisville in 1913. Dodd and Cobb designed the Masonit Theatre
(destroyed), the Atherton residence, the Grabfelder residence and the Presbyterian
Semminary. Their last major commercial building in Louisville, the Atherton
Building on the northwest corner of Fourth and Walnut is currently threatened
with demolition. In 1905 Dodd joined in a partnership with Kenneth McDonald,

a well-known local and regional architect. The firm of McDonald and Dodd
produced some of Louisville's finest buildings--the YMCA, the Weissinger Gaulbert
Apartments, Adath Israel Temple, First Christian Church (Fourth and Breckenridge),
Stewart's Dry Goods Building, the Tyler Hotel (now the Milner), and both the
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The east end of the sanctuary contains a large pointed arch. Behind the arch is

an apse which contains both a raised presbytery and the organ loft and pipes.

This area is richly decorated in wood panels with gothic motifs. A semi-circular
~area in front of the presbytery houses the altar and baptismal font. It is slightly

raised and divided from the nave by a wood balustrade.

The two most striking features of the interior are the stained-glass windows and
the vaulted ceiling supported by hammerbeam roof of mahogany .

The stained glass is richly varied with rose windows in the transepts. Rectangular
windows illuminate the side aisles. Many of these are memorial windows and are
decorated by the figures of Christ, St. Paul, John the Evangelist and persenifications
of Faith, Hope and Charity. The large arched windows, which consist of three panels,
pierce a large part of the second floor of the west wall. These panels have rich
tracery and contain Motifs of the Star of David and the Tree of Jesse.

A hallway and a vestry divide this sanctuary from the chapel built in 1880. This
room no longer contains pews or the presbytery. It does retain three arched stained-
glass panels on the east wall, a handsome gallery and a timbered vaulted ceiling.

A Sunday school addition was made to the rear of the church in 1922.



_ Form No. 10-300a

. {Rev.10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

Fourth Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church
Fourth Avenue United Methodist Church

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 2

Caperton Mansion (Rio Vista, destroyed) and the Louis Seelbach mansion on Alta
Vista. The firm was dissolved in 1913 and Dodd moved to Los Angeles. He practiced
with William Richards until his death in 1930. Dodd can be considered one of the
most important architects in Louisville and the southeast region of the United
States from 1890 to 1913.

Dodd designed several other structures in a refined Gothic Revival style. With
Mason Maury he designed St. Pauls Church (01d Louisville, National Register
February, 1975), one-of Louisville's most beautiful churches. Between 1903-
1907, he also designed the Collegiate Gothic Presbyterian Seminary (National
Register, March, 1975) which is a complex of elegant and architecturally refined

structures which appear as one unit around a court yard.

The congregation of the Fourth Avenue Church will celebrate its 100th aniversary
this year. The congregation has played an active role in the 01d Louisville
neighborhood and the church is the site of numberous neighborhood meetings.

The architecture of the church designed by Dodd and Cobb, is among the finest
structures in the Gothic Revival style in Louisville. The church is an important
anchor of the 01d Louisville neighborhood, both visually and a protective buffer
between the residential district and the encroaching commercial development

close by.
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